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RFP #15-9780-4CS

Learning Platform

Questions and Answers

May 13, 2015

Q1.
Section 2.B, page 9 states:  “The learning platform shall have the ability for 60,000 users to login concurrently. Offeror(s) must provide comprehensive documentation as evidence of their ability to accommodate concurrent users based on data collected from a similar environment.”  Can you please define the time-bound and use cases for the concurrency?  We see Time-bound as the expected concurrent usage to happen within one day, hour, minute, or second of each other. 
A: 
The use-case for this requirement is based on the unique requirements for Henrico County Public Schools.  Because of our 1:1 initiative, all students and teachers have computers that are accessing the Learning Platform.  All schools are on the same time schedule and so all students and teachers are logging in essentially at the same time to perform their work, the most extreme example being first period of an exam period.  HCPS would have the potential of 60,000 students and teachers all within 10 minutes of each other accessing the learning platform at a time where system performance cannot impede instruction.  Evidence that your solution is capable of handling that level of volume in such a short time period is required.
Q2.
Are we to address all of the items, point by point, in Section III, Scope of Services (pages 3-15) as well as all of the items listed on page 28 under “Executive Summary” within Tab 3 of our response and label it “Executive Summary?” 
A: 
The items should be addressed point-by-point in Section III. Executive Summary should also be addressed.  Please list any exceptions to HCPS requirements when responding.
Q3.
How many courses need to be converted?
A: 
The average teacher has 7 courses to convert. Some teachers (teen living, CTE, etc) may have up to 10 or more to convert. There are approximately 2500 secondary teachers. 
Q4.
Is the vendor expected to QA the content? Is there a deadline?
A: 
The vendor is expected to QA that the content is successfully migrated to the learning platform but is not expected to QA the content itself. The deadline for completing the QA of the migrations should be included in the vendor’s project plan.
Q5.
Do you have a content admin/team who we will work with?
A: 
The Successful Offeror will be working with various departments in Operational Technology and Instructional Technology. Instructional Technology is responsible for the PD and works with teachers in the schools using a train-the-trainer model. The proposed solution must include any assumptions made concerning the effort required by HCPS personnel to support the implementation.
Q6.
If this is a phased rollout, what content is needed initially? How many courses are needed initially?
A: 
All content in grades 6-12 will need to be converted and ready for use prior to the opening of school, September 2016. Content for the pilot schools (1 MS and 1 HS) will need to be converted and ready for use prior to the pilot beginning February 1, 2016.
Q7.
Do you host your Power School or does the state?
A: 
Henrico County Schools hosts the PowerSchool application and database.
Q8.
Are there any known performance issues that are being faced by HCPS in the existing platform usage?
A: 
· Lack of integration with new vendors and products

· Lack of support for updates in technical platforms (browsers, media players, integration for new formats)

· Limited reporting, specifically for analysis and review of testing information

· User Response time issues

· Inability to effectively load balance for peak periods

· Difficulty to migrate customizations with new releases of product

· Ease of Use

Q9.
What kind of solutions has HCPS tried in the past to meet the gaps in the existing product? 
A: 
Google Docs, webased 2.0 tools, purchased eLearning tools
Q10.
For the existing platform, does HCPS have an access URL? We would need access to the existing product, including all the access roles – Teacher, Student, Parent and any others.
· In case this public access is not available, do you have a VPN connection that will allow us to review the platform and the content?
A: 
HCPS does not have an ACCESS URL that would be available prior to submittal of the RFP.  Upon product award, administrative access can be provided to the implementation team as required.
Q11.
We understand the business need to migrate the content from the existing Angel 8 platform to the new platform. Kindly clarify the following with respect to the content:
· What is the volume of the content that is required to be ported to the new platform?  ie: 20 Courses per grade per subject
A. 7 courses minimum per  teacher- grades 6-12

· Does the content exist in any proprietary technologies like Flash, Silverlight?
A. No

· Was this content developed in-house at HCPS or by an external vendor?
A. In house

· Does HCPS have access to the content source code? 
A. Yes, the content is available to HCPS.  The Angel 8 platform is hosted by HCPS and the database and the content is available.  However, the vendor should identify any special requirements they may have for access to the Angel 8 content source in their proposal.

· Since the legacy content has to be ported to modern devices like tablets, does HCPS want to repurpose the content to fit the modern device guidelines and instructions (ie: suited to portrait and landscape viewing) Yes.  
Q12.
Kindly confirm that the environments supported will be Desktops, Notebooks and Tablets only and hence the following are out of scope:
A:
· Smartphones- The current environment is listed in the RFP. That does not negate the content being available on smartphones- “The learning platform shall support mobile technology including but not limited to the specific mobile devices currently used in HCPS. “
· Non Standard devices (ie: Chinese Handhelds)- out of scope
Q13.
How does HCPS manage/support the existing platform?  Is there a team in place that will lead the transition of the platform from the HCPS end?
A: 
There is a programming team in place in Operational Technology  that supports Angel. 
Instructional Technology Resource Teachers support the platform in the school.  The proposed solution must include any assumptions made concerning the effort required by HCPS personnel to support the implementation.
Q14.
Since the Learning Platform feature list seems to be an extended wish list: 
A:
· Does HCPS have a definition for a Minimal Viable Product (MVP) to be ready for July 2016?
i. HCPS is aware that there is no one company that will have every feature in this list. HCPS does not look at it as a wish list but are looking for the closest solution that can give our students and teachers the best possible LMP.

ii. HCPS is looking for a company that is an innovative leader in LMP’s that can grow with the needs of our students and teachers.

iii. The more needs that the vendors are able to meet with fidelity, the higher consideration that will be given to that company. 

· Does HCPS need the vendor to consult and build this Minimal Viable Product definition? The expectation is the provider will provide the MVP as part of their submitted proposal, providing the richest LMP experience at the best price.
Q15.
Kindly confirm if the existing systems at HCPS are accessible using standard API’s and 
procedures. Kindly provide the list of standards currently being used for:
A: 
The existing LMS and content systems do not support standard API’s
The Student Information System (PowerSchool) supports SIF and the PowerSchool Proprietary APIs. The proposed solution should describe the APIs intended to be used in the solution.  Industry standard APIs are preferred in support of the learning platform.
· Content
· Assessment
· Courses
· Platform development
· Platform Integration
Q16.
For Languages/Localization, we understand English, Spanish, French and Chinese to be 
supported in the final product. Please confirm.
A:  
“The learning platform shall support multiple common foreign language interfaces for 
courses (example: Spanish, French, Chinese, etc.).” The example languages are intended not as a comprehensive list but as a sample of the types of languages.  The proposed solution must include a description of how flexible language/localization is supported regardless of the language.
Q17.
For the user data to be migrated from the existing platform - is the data available in a single 
location or is it scattered across multiple locations
A: 
Data Defining the User: User Information is available centrally in a single location.
Q18.
Henrico County Public Schools (HCPS) currently has only a 4GB internet connection to be shared by 60,000 users, yet has 15GB of WAN bandwidth.  Our solution leverages WAN/LAN bandwidth because the disparity between internet bandwidth and WAN bandwidth at HCPS is common, making a locally hosted appliance solution far more effective particularly in 1:1 environments.  To insure proper functionality for the Learning Platform at this scale, particularly for video streaming, will HCPS consider a locally hosted appliance solution inside the HCPS WAN rather than a cloud-hosted solution?
A. HCPS is looking for a cloud based solution. All solutions proposed will be reviewed but our preference is to not have a locally hosted appliance solution.  If a locally hosted appliance solution is proposed, the vendor  will need to include all costs for the solution included estimated support costs for HCPS personnel to maintain the solution.

Q19.
Section III.A.1 – Migration of Content – are there any others that will be added?  
A: 
HCPS does not have other sources of content that would need to be migrated. 
Q20.
Same section - When there is a reference to content that must be moved, will HCPS perform 
this or will the Successful Offeror be responsible? Please provide more information on 
WordPress blog pages and Google App’s. 
A:
There are two components to this requirement. The vendor should be able to integrate external web pages  or  Google Apps into course content.  In addition we asked for the vendor to develop a plan for migrating course content from these sites into the Learning Platform.  The response must include a recommended plan for how to finalize the scope and execution of this migration from HCPS’ various sources of content.
Q21.  Word Press blog pages – Integration or Migration?  What would you envision this would look 
like?
A: 
Integration: Access to external content (ex. WP Blogs) from the learning platform.
Migration: Transformation of content from the external source into the learning platform. 
Q22. Section III.A.2 – User interface – end user – define? Who is this person? User Interface - The learning platform shall have an interface that can be easily customized by the end user.
A: 
Any user of the product. Students, teachers, HCPS Staff, and HCPS parents of student 
Users. 
Q23. Please provide more information on Section III.A.6 – integration – Integration of social media 
networks.
A:
This section does not speak to social media. The expectation for integration with social media would be access through an LTI. 
Q24.
Section III.B. Instruction Minimum Requirement – Would HCPS be interested in information 
from Offeror who have products that would integrate?
A: 
If it comes at no charge as part of the learning platform, product information may be included. If it comes as an add on that requires a purchase, it should not be included in base pricing or as part of the RFP. 
Q25. Section III.B.6.  “The learning platform shall allow for differentiated instruction and opportunities 
to personalize learning”. What are you looking for with this statement?
A: 
HCPS is looking for any type of automated differentiation that might be available or ease of differentiation. We are not looking for a system where a teacher has to hand- create curriculum or content for each student. 
Q26.
Section III.B.3. Assignments & Grading – Would HCPS be interested in products available? 
from Offerors that would make this process easier for teachers?
A. Potentially depending on cost and provided the cost is separated from the base cost of the solution in the proposal. 

Q27.
Section III.B.4. Assessments – are they created in current learning management platform?
What is current testing platform?
A. Assessment are currently being created in 2 ways:

· From scratch in Angel

· Created in Examview  and exported to Angel

· Currently, Angel and Interactive Achievement are being used as testing solutions. 

Q28. 
Instructional Tools – 6.a.2. – Is HCPS interested in bringing the calendar into the new system?
A. HCPS is not interested in bringing the county calendar into the new system.

Q29. 
Page 8 C.1 – Infrastructure –  Are you looking for a cloud based or locally hosted solution?
A: 
HCPS is looking for a cloud based solution. We will look at all solutions but our preference is to not have a locally hosted appliance solution.  If a locally hosted appliance solution is proposed, the vendor will need to include all costs for the solution included estimated support costs for HCPS personnel to maintain the solution.
Q30. 
Page 9 C.1.i – “separate test environment” Please clarify and are you looking for a testing or 
beta site?
A. HCPS is looking for a testing environment. If a beta site is included, that’s nice as well. 

Q31.
Page 9 C.2.b – “60,000 concurrent users” Please clarify HCPS expectation for this 
requirement.
A: 
Henrico County has the potential to have all of its users logging into the system at the same time. It is a normal occurrence for all secondary students (~25,000) to log on within a 10 minute span. Up to this point, elementary students do not use our current LMS. Since we are looking for a K-12 solution, the possibility of everyone logging on concurrently within a 10 minute time span does exist
Q32: 
Bandwidth usage as it relates to the size of the course?  How would you like Offerors to address this?
A: 
HCPS is looking for peak, average and minimum bandwidth per student per school type based on an average student course load for your product.  Any clarifications Offerors would like to provide for how that calculation is derived are welcome.
Q33.  Page 11 – Video Card -  Can the current settings be fixed/revised?
A: 
The settings are able to be adjusted by students and teachers,  However, HCPS is uninterested in a product that requires students or teachers to adjust the default screen settings above or below the specified settings.
Q34.
If an Offeror has upgrades that are planned for a future release, how should this be listed or 
explained in the proposal submittal?
A. Future releases may be submitted in a separate section and will be considered in section A8 that addresses the company’s  product roadmap. 

Q35. 
How many users will HCPS expect in the pilot?  Would training be expected for the pilot and if 
so how many would need to be trained and using what format?
A. 2015-16 Secondary Pilot- One high school and one middle school will be included in the 2015-16 pilot. High Schools usually average between 1500 and 2000 students and around 140 teachers. Middle Schools usually average around 1000 students and 80 teachers.

B. 2016-17 Elementary pilot- 2 elementary schools- Elementary schools average  varies greatly with anywhere from 250-900 students with approximately 50 teachers per site. 
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